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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of NK Toll Road Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NK Toll Road Limited {"the
Company”}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information {hereinafter referred to as “Financial
Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of owr information and according to the explanations given o us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Acl”} in the manner se required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS"} and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2024, its Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, its Cash Flows and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {"SA"} specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of india (1CAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s report and shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon,

Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we reguired to
report that fact. The other information is likely to be provided to us after the date of our report.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act, with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the Financial Position, Financial Performance including Other Comprehensive Income, Cash
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the ind AS
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of the appropriate
accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
eperating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
(air view and are free from marerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concarn
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s finangial reporting
Process.

Auditor’s Responsibitities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Migstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the hasis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso:

+  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the al%rhi in order to design au
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143 (3){i} of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.,
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Ind AS Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
gualitative faclors in:

i planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
i, to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have comptied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on cur independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companics (Auditur’s Report) Order, 2020 {“the Order”), Issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the "Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;




& ASSOCIATES
HARTERED AGCOUNTANTS

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by Ezw have
Company sc far as appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Less including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

d} Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Act;

2] On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Boeard of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the
Act;

f] With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company with reference to these financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 3"

8) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197{16) of the Act, as amended, we report that no
remuneration has been paid by the company to its directors during the year. Hence the
requirement of the company for compliance under this section is not applicable.

h) With respect to the other matters te be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rules 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
apinion and to the best of pur information and according to the explanations given to us
and as represented by the management:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at March 31,
2024 on its financial position in its Financial Statement. - Refer Note No. 27 &
28 of the accompanying financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iti. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a} Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note No. 41 to the financial statement no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in ather
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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vi.

(b) Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note No. 41 to the financial statement no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity{ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
tend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on hehalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries

(¢} Based on our audit procedure conducted that are considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that
cause us to believe that the representation given by the management under
paragraph (2) (i) (iv) (a} & (b) contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year,

Based on our examination which included test check, the company has used
an accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts which has a
feature of maintaining andit trail facility, which has been operating thereafter,
Further, duriug the course of our audit, we did not come across any cases
where the audit trail maintained has been tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules 2014 is applicable
from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the said Rule on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year 2023-24.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accounlants
Firm Registration no. 302014E

N4rendra Khandal

Partner

Membership No.: 065025

UDIN : 24065025BKA0FW4659

Place : Mumbai
Date :May 10,2024
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF NK'TOLL ROAD LIMITED.

(Referred te in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit,
we state that:

i) {a}  (A) The company does not carry an property, plant and equipment in its financial
statements and hence the reporting reguirements under this sub-clause is not
applicable.

{B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its
intangible assets.

{b) Inview of there being ne property, plant and equipment, the reporting requirements
under this sub-clause is not applicable,

(c) There are no immovable properlies disclosed in the accompanying financial
statements and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause {c} of clause {i) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable,

(d}  As explained to us, the company has not revalued any of its Intangible assets during
the year.

(e)  According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, we report that no proceedings have been
initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at March 31, 2024 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988
(45 of 1988} and rules made thereunder.

i) {a)  In our opinion, and accerding to the information and explanations given to us, the
company does not carry any inventories. [Hence, the reporting requirements under
sub-clause (a} of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

{b) The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or
financial institutions and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause {b) of
clause {ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

iii} ~ With respect to investments made in or any guarantee or security provided or any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, granted during the year by the
Company te companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties:

{a)  As per the information and explanations given to us and books of accounts and
records examined by us, during the year the Company has not provided any guarantee
or security, However, the Company has granted following loans to companies:

Particulars Amount

(Rs. in Million}

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year
Holding -
Fellow subsidiary 320.00
Balance cutstanding, at cost, as at balance sheet date in respect
of above cases

Holding 100.00

Fellow subsidiary 496.00




v)

vi)

vii)

(b)  In our opinion and according to infermation and explanations given us and on the
basis of our audit procedures, the investments made, guarantee provided, security
given and the terms and conditions of all loans and advances in the nature of loans
and guarantee provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial to Company's interest.

{c)  According to the books of accounts and records examined by us in respect of the loans
and advances in the nature of loans, where the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated, the repayments or receipts are generatly
regular as per stipulated terms,

(d}  Accerding to the books of accounts and records examined by us in respect of the
loans, there is no amount everdue for more than ninety days.

(e} In our opinion and according to information and explanation given and the hooks of
accounts and records examined by us, lbans granted which have fallen due during the
year have been renewed or extended as per details below and ne fresh Joans have
been granted to settle the over dues of existing foans given to the same parties:

Particulars Aggregate amount of | Percentage of the aggregate
existing loans renewed or | te the total loans or
extended advances in the nature of

loans granted during the
year for

Holding Company Rs. 100 Million 46,58

Fellow Subsidiary Rs, 179 Million

{)  The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
Companies, (irms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3{iii}(f) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

I our opinion and accerding to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not advanced any loans to directors / to a company in which the Director is interested to
which the provisions of section 185 of the Act apply. Further, based on the information and
explanations given to us, being an infrastructure company, the pravisions of section 186 of
the Act to the extent of loans, guarantees and securities granted are not applicable to the
company. Hence, the reporting requirements under clause (iv} of paragraph 3 of the order
are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. Consequently, the directives
issued by Reserve Bank of india and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
rules framed thereunder are not applicabie.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section {1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed such
records and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view
to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

{a) 'In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and
based on our examination of the books of the company, the company is generally
regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, and any other
material statutory dues to the appropriate authorities.

& ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS




& ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

There are ne undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, and any other material
statufory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b}  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in clause (a} above which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute other than the following:

Nature of Nature Period for Forum where Amount
statute of Dues which the dispute is involved
amount pending (inRs.)
related
Income Tax income AY. 2012-13 High Court 1,77,36,714
Act, 1961 Tax Bombay
viii) According to the information and explanations and representation given to us, there are

no lransactions relating Lo previously unrecorded income that bas been surrendered oy
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961.

ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given and
hooks of accounts and records examined by us, the Company does not have any
borrowing from banks or financial institution during the year and hence the
reporting under sub-clause (a) and {b) of clause {ix) of the order are not
applicable.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fresh term loans have been taken during the year,

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, in our
opinion, ne funds raised on short term basis have been prima-facie being used
for long term purposes during the year.

(&) The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause {e) of clause (ix} of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable,

(£ The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (f] of clause (ix} of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

(%) (a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) and hence clause (x}(a} of paragraph 3
of the Order is not applicabie to the Company.

{h) NDuring the year, the Company has nat made any preferantial aliorment of shares
or fully or partly or optionally convertible debentures and Hence reporting
under clause (x}(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

{xi) (a} Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true
and fair view of the financial statements and as per information and
explanations given 1o us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been

noticed or reported during the year.
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(b During the year, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been fited by cost auditor/Secretarial auditor or by us
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

{c) The company is not mandated to bave a vigil mechanism in terms of section
177{9) of the Act.
{xii) In our opinion, Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause

(xii} of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii} [n eur opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act and their
details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. As per information and explanation given to us,
section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the company.

{xiv) {a) in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of ifs business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date,
for the period under audit for the purpose of planning our audit procedures,

(xv) According to the information and explanations provided by the management, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons
connected with him as referred to in Section 192 of the Act.

(xvi) {a) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934.
)] In our opinion, and according Lo the information and explanations provided to

us and on the basis of cur audit procedures, the Cumpany has not conducted
any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year as per
the Reserve bank of India Act 1934,

{) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided (o
us, the Company is not a Core luvestment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d) As represented by the management, the group does nol have more than one
core investment company (CIC) as part of the group as per the definition of
group contained in Core Investment Companies (Reserved Bank) Directions,
2016,

(xwii) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us,
Company has not incurred any cash Josses in the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Therefore,
provisions of clause (xviii) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicabie to the
Company.,
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{xix} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financiat ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabitities falling due within a peried of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due,

{(ax} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) contribution under section 135
of the Act is not applicable to the Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xx] (a)
& (b) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014E

Narendra Khandal

Partner

Membership Neo.: 065025

UDIN : 24065025BKA0FW4659

Place :Mumbai
Date :May 10,2024
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF NK TOLL ROAD LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of
our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to financial
statement of NK Toll Road Limited (“the Cempany”} as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for internat Financial Controis

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company censidering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
[nstitute of Chartered Accountants of india ("ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements hased on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by [CAI and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these [linancial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
malerial respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit cvidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial coentrols system over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting wilh reference Lo these {inancial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference To These
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
ol management and directors of the company ; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the Financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference
To These Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference (o Uiese financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given Lo us, the
Company has, in al} material respects, an adeguate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2024, based on the criteria for internal financial centrol over financial reporting
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014E

Narendra Khandal

Partner

Membership No.: 065025

UDIN : 24065025BKAOFW4.659

Place :Mumbai
Date :May 10, 2024




NK Toll Road Limited

CIN' UGTI90MN 2005710 154359
Balance Sheef as at March 31, 2024

Rs. Millions
. As at As al
Particuiars Note  prareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Nen-current assets
{a) Concession Intangible assets 4 420.93 1,265.14
{b) Financial Assets
- Qther Financial Assets ad 0.13 0.13
(c) Current Tax Assels (Net) 45.31 1.80
{d} Deferred tax assets {net} 32 39.51 39.51
Total Non-Current Assets 505.88 1,306.38
Current assets
{a) Financial Assets
{i} Cash and cash equivalenis 5a 149,20 £8.74
{ii) Loans 5b 486.00 279.00
{iti) Other financial asset 8¢ 15.99 16.36
{b) Other current assets 8 14.75 4.088
Total Current Assets 665.94 358.98
Total Assels 1,171.82 1,665.36
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a} kEquity share capital I 44,77 44.77
{b} Subordinated debt {in nature of Equity) 8 - 1,802.69
{c} Other equity Ba (2,218.53) {637 .16)
Total Equity (2,173.76) 1,3490.30
LIABILITIES
Non-current liahifities
(@) Financial Liabilities
{1y Borrowings g 1,106.59 -
{b) Provisions i2b 8.06 518
Total Non-Current Liabittties 1,114.65 518
Current liabilities
{2} Financial Liabilities
{i) Trade payables
(A} Total outstanding due of micro enterprises
& small enterprises 10 - -
(B) Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises & small enterprises 17.82 26.61
{ify Other financial liabilities 11 2,145.39 21.70
(b} Other current liabilities i3 23.61 0.66
(c) Provisions 12a 44,11 300.91
Total Current Liabilities 2,230.93 349.88
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,171.82 1,665.36
The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements
As per our attached report of even date
For MKPS & Associates For and on behalf on hoard
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014k
'(Narendra Khandal) Mahesh Gaikwad Deepak Bisht
Partner Director Director
Membership Number : 065025 DIN: 06664842 DiN: 07836671
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 10, 2024 Date: May 10, 2024




NK Toll Road Limited
CIN: U67190MH2005PLC154359
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Rs. Millions
Particutars Note For Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from QOperations 14 526.35 466.43
Other Income 15 13.36 23.61
Totai Income 539.71 490.04
Expenses 5d
Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses 16 203.22 194.64
Employee benefils expense 17 34.63 19.03
Finance cosis 18 40.70 31.14
Depreciation and amortization expense 4 305.50 267.80
Other expenses 19 153.27 21.10
Total expenses 737.32 533.71
Profit / {loss) before exceptional Hems and tax (197.61} (43.67)
Exceptional items 30 (1,381.77} -
l.oss before tax {1,579.38) {43.67)
Tax expense
Current tax . .
Deferred tax charge/{credil) - 23.12
income tax for earlier years - -
- 23.12
Profit/{Loss) after tax {1,579.38) {66.79)
Other Comprehensive Income f{Loss)
- Hems that will not be reclassified to Income/(L.oss)
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans : Gains / (Loss) {1.99) {4.09)
benefit plans . Gains / {Loss)
Other Comprehensive Income Income/{Loss) {1.98} (4.09)
Total Comprehensive Income Income/{Loss) (1.581.37} {70.83)
Earnings/(loss) per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 per share)
Basic & Diluted 26 (352.78) (14.92)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financiat statements
As per our attached report of even date
For MKPS & Asscciates For and on behalf on board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014E
Narendra Khandal) Mahésh Gatkwad Peepak Bisht

Partner

Membership Number : 065025
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 10, 2024

Director
DIN: 07836671

Director

DIN: 06664942
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 10, 2024




NK Toll Road Limited

CIN: UG7100MH2085PLC 154359
Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

Rs. Millions
Particulars For Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Loss before tax {1,579.38) {43.67)
Adjustmens for:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 305.50 267.80

tnlerest income {43.39) (2.92)

Finance Cost 40.70 31.14

Exceptional ltems 1,381.77 -

Provision for expected credit loss 113.00 -

Provision for Gratuity and Leave encashment 1.04 0.81

Provision for Resurfacing expenses 101.62 121.96

Miscellaneous income - {0.01)

350.83 37431
Cash Generated from Operations before working capital changes
Adjusiments for:

{Increaselfdecrease in financial assets {2.39} {0.17)

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets {9.87) {0.86})

increasef{decrease) in trade payables {8.79) {29.91)

increasef{decrease) in other financial liabilities 44,28 -

increase/{decrease) in provisions {395.96) (98.91)

Increasef{decrease) in other current liahilities 1.95 0.07

(370.78) {128.78}
Cash generated from operations {19.95) 24513

Taxes {paid) net of refunds {39.84) {3.19)

Net cash generated from operating activities - [A] {69.79) 241.04
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Received against Arbitration Award 1,260.07 -

Inter corporate deposits repaid - -

Inter corporate deposits given {320.00) {116.00}

Interest received 6.28 0.25
Net cash {used in) / generated trom investing activities - IB] 946.35 {115.75)

¢ CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Repayment of Sub-debt {796.10) {(B0.0Q)
Net cash used in tinancing activities - {C] {796.10} {80.00})
Net increasef{decrease} in cash and cash equivalents - [A+B+(] 90.46 46,19
Add: Cash and cash equivaients at the beginning of the year £8.74 12.55
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 149.20 58.74
Components of Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks - in Current accounts 149.060 58.62

Cash cn hand 0.20 0.12

Total Cash and cash equivalents 149.20 58.74

Note:

The balance lying in escrow / current account with banks of Rs. 149.00 million (Rs.58.62 million) held as security against borrowings.
As per our attached repon of even date
For MKPS & Associates For and on bghalf gn board

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014E

{Narendra Khandal) Matiesh Galkwad {eepak Bishf -
Partner Directar Director
Membership Number ; 065025 DiN: 06664942 DIN: 07836671
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 10, 2024 Date: May 10, 2024



NK Toli Road Limited
CiIN: UB7190MH2005P1.C154359
Statement of Changes in Equity

A, EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Rs. Millions
Balance at the Changes in Balance at the end
Particulars beginning ?f the eq%uty sha're of the year/period
vearfperiod capital during
the year/period
For the year ended March 31, 2023 4477 - 44.77
For the year ended March 31, 2024 44.77 - 44.77
Rs. Millions
Particulars Reserves and | v,y
Surplus
Balance at April 01, 2022 (566.28) (566.28)
Profit for the year (66.78} (66.78)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year -
Remeasurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans (4.09) {4.09)
Teotal comprehensive income for the year (70.88) (70.88)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 (637.16) (637.16}
Balance at April 01, 2023 {637.16) (637.16)
Profit for the year {1,5679.38) (1,579.38)
Other comprehensive incomel{loss) for the period
Remeasurement gains/{ioss) on defined benefit plans {1.99) {1.99)
Total comprehensive income for the period {1,581.37) {1,5681.37)
For the year ended March 31, 2024 (2,218.53) (2,218.53)

As per our attached report of even date

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014&

(Narendra Khandal)
Patiner
Membership Number : 065025

Place: Mumbai
Dale: May 10, 2024

For and on behalf on board

Mahesh Gatkwad Deepak Bisht

Director
DIN: 08864042

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 10, 2024

Director
DIN: 07836871




NK Toll Road Limited
CIN: U67 1908 2005010154359
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 1: Corporate information

NK Tolt Road Limited ("the Company”} was incorporated on June 29, 2008, was awarded on Build,
Operale and Transfer {BOT) basis, the widening of existing two-lane covering 33.48 kms stretch from Km
258.645 {End of Namakkal By pass) -Km 292.60 (Start of Karur Bypass) Section of Nationa! Highway No.7
in the State of Taminadu and operation and maintenance thereof, under the Concession Agreement dated
January 30, 2006 with National Highways Authority of India. The Concession Agreement is for a pericd of
20 years from July 29, 2006 being the appointed date.

The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Reliance Infrastructure Limited. At the end of the Concession
period, the entire facility will be transferred to NHAI.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 10, 2024
Pursuant o the provisions of section 130 of the Act the Central Government, income {ax authorities and
other statutory regulatory body and section 131 of the Act the board of directers of the Company have
powers to amend / re-open the financiat slatements approved by the board / adopted by the members of
the Company.

The Company is a public fimited company incorporated and domiciled in India. The registered office of the
Company is located at Reliance Centre, 19, Walchand Hirachand Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai 400 001.

Naote 2: Basis of preparation

These Financial Stalements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Slandards} Ruies, 2015] and other relevant provisions of lhe Acl. These Financial Statements have bean
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and disclosures mandated by Schedule
il of the Act, applicable ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and regulations.

These Financial Stalements have been prepared on a hisiorical cost basis, except for cerlain assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value.

These Financial Statements are presented in ¥ Mitlions, except where otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the infermation and
disclosures mandated by Schedule Il to the Act, applicable Ind AS, other appticable pronouncements and
regulations.

Note 3: Summary of Material accounting policies

3.1

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and Habiliies in the balance sheef based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

»  Expected to be realised or intended 1o be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

»  Expecied to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setiie a fability for at least
iwelve months after the reporting periad

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liabliity is current when:
= itiz expecied to be settled in normal operating cycle
= itis diue fo be settled within twelve months afler {he reporling period, or
»  There is ne unconditicnal right to defer the settlement of the liability for al least twelve months after
the reporting period
All other fiabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cydle is the time belween the acquisition of assets for processing and ther realizatianin
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has idenfified twelve months as its operating cyele. -




NK Toll Road Limited
CING UGTH00MH 20851P1.C1 54359
Notes fo Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

3.2

3.3

Functional and presentation currency

Hems included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic envirorment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency’). The functional statements

are presented in Indian Rupees ('), which the company’s functional and presentation currency.

Fair value measurement

FFair vaiue is the price that would be received to selt an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on ihe presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
= inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants wouid
use when pricing the asset or liahility, assuming thal market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurementi of a non-financial asset takes into account & market parlicipant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
parlicipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumsatances end for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of refevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilittes for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Stalemenis are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liahilities

tevet 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and fiabilities thal are 1ecugnised in the Financial Statements on a recuring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest {evel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non -
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured
at fair value.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabifities
which are required fo be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inpuls applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and lizbility with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks ‘of the asset or lability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair vaiue. Cther fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

Disclesures for valuation methods, significant estimales and assumptions of Financial instruments
(including those carried at amortised cosl (note 20) and Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement
hierarchy (note 21).




NK Toll Road Limited
CING USTI90MH2005PLC 154359
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

3.4 Revenue recognition

3.5

Revenue is recognized up on transler of controt of promised services to customers in an amount that
refiects the consideration we expect fo receive in exchange for those services.

Toll revenue
The income from foll revenue from operations of lhe facility is accounted on accrual basis.
Others

Interest Income on financial assets measured at amortized cost is recognised using the effective interest
rate method,

Dividends are recognised in the Stalement of profil and loss only when the right to receive payment is
established.

Accounting of intangible assets under service concession arrangement

The Company has Toll Road Concession rights where # Built, Operates and Transfers (BOT) infrastructure
used o provide public service for a specified period of time. These arrangements may include
Infrastruclure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful life.

These arrangements are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The infangible asset
model is used to the extent that the Company receives a right (a license) to charge users of the public
service. The financial assel mode! is used when the Company has an unconditional contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services.
When the unconditional right to receive cash covers only part of the service, the two madels are combined
to account separately for each component. If the Company performs more than one service (ie.,
construction or upgrade services and operation services) under a single conract or arrangement,
consideration received or receivable is allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services
delivered, when the amounts are separately identifiable,

The intangible assets is measured at the fair value of consideration transferred to acquire asset, which is
the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the construction services delivered.

Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projected toll
revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The projecied
total foll revenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; Amortization is revised in case of
any material change in the expected pattern of economic benefits, Refer note 24 for description and
significant terms of the concession agreements.

Financial assets model

The financial asset model applies when the operator has an unconditional right fo receive cash or another
financial assel from the grantor in remuneration for concession services. In the case of concession
services, the operator has such an unconditional right if the grantor contractually guaraniees the payment
of amount specified or determined in the confract or the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from
users of public service and amounts specifled or determined in the Contract.

Financial Assets resulting from application of Appendix D of Ind AS 115 are recorded in the Balance Sheet
under the heading "Other Financial Assets” and recognized at amortised cost.

However in case of certain arrangements, the contract may include a payment commitment on the part of
fhe concession grantor covering only part of investment, with the balance {o be recovered from by charging
users of service . In such arrangements the investment amount guaranteed by the concession grantor is
recognized under the financial asset model and the residual balance is recognized under the Intangible
asset model.

Any asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal or when the coniractual rights-to, the
financial asset expire. o N




NK Toll Road Limited
CING UG7T190M H2005P1LC154359
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

3.6

Maintenance obligations

Contractual obligations o maintain, replace or restore the infrastructure {principally resurfacing cosls and
major fepairs and unscheduled maintenance which are required to maintain the Infeastructure asset in
operalichal condition except for any enhancement eiement) are recognized and measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required o seltle the present obligation at the balance sheet date for which
nexl resurfacing would be required as per the concession arrangement. The provision is discounted to its
present value al a pre-iax rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific o the liability.

Taxes
Current Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilifles are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and {ax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and
generates taxable income. Current income tax relating to ilems recognized outside the Statement of Profit
and Loss is recognized oulside the Statement of Profit and Loss (elther in other comprehensive income or
in equity}. Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject o interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Minimum Alternate Tax {MAT') under the provisions of Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax
in the statement of profit and loss. MAT paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment fo future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in
the balance sheet when it is probable that the fulure economic benefit associated with it will flow to the
Company.

Current tax assets and labiliies are offset only if, the Company:

a}has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
b)inlends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

Deferred tax

Deferred fax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabifities and their carrying amounts for financiat reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
losses can be utilized.

The canrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the exient
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avaitable to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be ulilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits wilt allow the deferred tax
asset 10 be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liabliity is settied, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted ar substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized outside
the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in olher comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognized in correiation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitties are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxabie entity-and
the same taxation authorily.
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Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

3.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly aflributable lo the acquisition, construclion or production of an assel that
necessarily takes a substanlial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. Alf other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing cosls consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences fo the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.

3.8 Leases

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in the income statement on a straight
fine basis over the lease term.

3.9 Contingent liabilities and contingent Assets

A conlingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose exislence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future evenls beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable thal an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is & fiability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The contingent
fiability is nol recognised in the books of accounts but its existence is disclosed in the Financial
Statements. A Contingent asset is not recognized in financial statements, however, the same are disclosed
where an inflow of economic benefil is probabie.

310 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assels are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment ioss is recognized for the amount by which the
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
assel's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the fowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generaling unils). Non-
financiat assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversat of the impatrment at the end of
each reporting period.

3.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (fegal or constructive) as a result of
a pasl event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embaodying economic benefits will be required to
seitle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that refiects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due 1o the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

3.12 Employee benefits
(i) Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be sellled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet,

(it} Leave obligations

The Company provides sick leave and privilege leave 1o its employees.

Privilege and sick leave obligation is provided based on actuarial vatuation which takes info ageount .
the estimated portion of leave that will be en-cashed, availed and the portion that will lapse~The
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3.13

314

portion that is expected fo be en-cashed is provided for based on the basic salary of the employee
and for the portion that is expected o be availed; the valualions are based on the employees' total
compensation. The liability for earned leave is also classified as current where it s expecled {o be
availed/ en-cashed during the next 12 months. The remaining porlion is classified as non-current. The
amounts of current and non-current liabilily are based on actuarial estimates.

(iii) Post - employment obligations

The Company operates various post-employment schemes, including
{(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity
{b) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity Obligations

The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit graluity plans is
the present value of the defined benefil obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
vaiue of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaties
using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash oulflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. .

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefil obligation and the fair value of plan assels. This costis included in employee benefit expense
in the statement of profil and loss.

Re-measurement gains and iosses arising from experience adjusiments and changes in actuarial
assumplions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earmings in the Statement of Changes in Equily and in the
balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit abligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtaitments are recognized immediately in profil or loss as past service cost.

Defined Contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per iocal
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized
as an assel to the exient that a cash refund or a reduction in the {uture payments is avaitable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheel comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalenis consist of cash and short-ferm

deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of
the Company's cash management,

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liabilify

of equity instrument of another entity. .
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair vaiue, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fais-
vatue through Statement of Profit and Loss, net of directly attributable transaction cost to the acquisition of

the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assels that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades} are recognised on the
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rade date, i.e, the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories;
»  al amortised cost

= at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

=  atfair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH

Financial Assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assels for coliecting contractual
cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI} on the principal amount oufstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. All the Loans and other receivables under financial
assets {except Investments) are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market.

After initial measurement such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Inferest Rale (EiR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to loans and other
receivables.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive Income

All investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company has investment in mutuai
funds which are held for trading, are classified as at FVTPL. The Company makes such eleclion on an
instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on inilial recognition and is irrevocable.

if the Company decides to classify an instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive income. There is no recycling
of the amounts from Other Comprehensive income (OCI) {o the Statement of Profil and Loss, even on sale
of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset {or, where appiicable, a part of a financial assel or part of the Company’s similar financial
assels) is primarily derecognized {i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has lransferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay fo a third parly under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially ail the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially ali the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially al! of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset fo the
exient of the Company's continuing involvement. in that case, the Company also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that lhe Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking hasis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whethgr there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. )

The Company has three types of financial assets subject to Ind AS 109's expected credit Joss/model:
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»  Loans receivables measured al amotlised cost

*  Retentions receivable, granl receivable from NHAI

=  Loans given to employees

The impairment methodology for each class of financial assets stated above is as follows:

Loans receivables measured al amoriised cost: Loans receivables at amortised cosl are generally short
{erm in nature considered to be low risk, and lhus the impairment provision is determined as 12 months
expected credit losses.

Loans given to employees: For loans given to employees outslanding as on the reporting dates, the has
determined reliably that assessing the probability of default at the initial recognition of each and every loan
or receivable would result in undue cost and effort. As permitted by ind AS 109, the credit provision will be
determined based on whether credit risk is fow only at each reporting date, until the loan is derecognized.
Using the impairment methodology the Company has assessed that no loan loss allowance needs to be
recorded in the books of accounts.

Expected credit loss (ECL’) impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The batance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is
described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortized cosi and other contractual revenue receivables - ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assels in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilties are classified, at initial recognition, as financial tiabilities at fair value through Statement
of Profit and Loss, loans and borrowings, trade payables or other payables.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value.

The Company's financial liabifities include irade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at amortized cost: After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently
measured al amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is caiculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs thal are an integral part of
the EIR. The EiR amortization is included in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recegnition, interest-bearing tfoans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR methed. However, the Company
has borrowings at floating rates. The Impact of restatement of effective interest rate, year on year due to
reset of interesl rate, is not material. Gains and iosses are recegnized in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the fransaction cost amarlization process.

Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less {or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presenied as
non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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Retention money payable

This is the category most relevant to the Company. Retention moneys are measured at Fair value initially.
Subsequenily, they are measured at amortised cost using the EIR {Effective interest rate} method. Gains
and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the labilittes are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amorlization process.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial Hability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantialiy
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the origina! fiabiiity and the recognition of a new fability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabfities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if

there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an infention to
seille via net basls, to reallze the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneousty,

3.15 Segment information

Operating segments are reported in 2 manner consistent with the internal reporting provided 1o the chief
operaling decision maker (CODM), Chief operating decision maker's function is to aliocate the resources
of the entity and access the performance of the operating segment of the enity.

The Roard assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic
decisions. Itis identified as being the chief operating decision maker for the company.

3.16 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

{i

—

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed o be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the refated actual results. The estimates and assumplions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 1o the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are
disclosed below.

Applicability of service concession arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaire
arrangements

The Company has determined that Appendix D of ind AS 115 'Service concession arrangements’ is
applicable to the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for public-fo-private service
concession arrangements, The Company has entered into concession arrangement with NHAI as per
which the Company would participate in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFQOT) basis
the toll roads infrastructure. After the end of the concession arrangement, the Company has to ransfer the
infrastructure i.e. toll roads constructed to National Highway Authorities of India {NHAI).

Accordingly the Company has recognized the intangible assets recegnized as per the accounting policy
mentioned in Note no 3.5 ‘Accounting of intangible assets under service concessionaire arrangement’.

{ii}) lncome taxes

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets refating to carried forward tax losses to the axtent there
are sufficient taxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation authority against which the
unused tax fosses can be utilized. However, the utilization of tax losses also depends on the ability of the
Company to satisfy certain tests at the time the losses are recouped. Management has forecasted future
taxable profits and has therefore recognized deferred tax assets in relation to tax losses.

{(iif) Amortization of concessicn intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projected toll
revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed. Tive projecter
total toll revenue is based on.the independent traffic volume projections; Amortization is revised it case
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of any material change in the expecled pattern of economic benefits.

(iv) Provision for resurfacing obligation {(major maintenance expenditure}

37

The Company records the resurfacing obligation for its present obligation as per the concession
arrangement to maintain the toll roads at every five years during the concession period. The provision is
included in the Financial Statements at the present value of the expected future payments. The
calculations to discount these amounts to their present vaiue are based on the estimated timing of
expenditure occurring on the roads.

The discount rate used to value the resurfacing provision at its present value is determined through
reference to the nature of provision and risk associated with the expenditure.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time fo time. For lhe year ended
March 31, 2024, MCA has nol netified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Company.
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Note 4 - Concession Intangible assets
Rs. Millions

Toll Collection right

Particulars {Intangible Assets)

Year ended March 2023
Opening gross carrying amaount 3,146.18
Additions -
Disposais/Adjusiment -

Closing gross carrying amount 3,146.18
Accumulated Amortisation and impairment 1,613.24
Opening accumulated Amortisation and impairment 1813.24
Amaortisation charge for the year 267.80

Disposais/Adjustment -

Closing accumulated Amortisation and impairment 1,681.04

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 1,265.14

Year ended March 31, 2023

Opening gross carrying amount 3.146.18
Additions -

Disposals/Adjustment 538.71
Closing gross carrying amount 2,607.47
Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment 1,881.04
Opening accumulated Amortisation and impairment 1,8581.04
Amortisation charge for the year 305.50

Disposals/Adjustment -

Closing accumulated Amortisation and impairment 2,186.54
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 420.93
Note :

1) The company has included flat at Dahisar west in Mumbai district of Rs 0.93
Milion in gross block of Intangible assets.

2) All the title deeds of Immovable property are heid in the name of the company

3) No proceedings has been initiated or pending against the company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988,
Tharofore the disclosure of details of Benami Mroperty held is not applicable,
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Rs. Millions

Particutlars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Note & (a) - Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- it current accounts

Cash on hand

Note 5 (b} - Loans
Unsecured, considered good
Loans

- Intercorporate deposits to Refated Parly {(Refer Nole No 31)

Less : Provision for expected credit loss

Nute:

14%.00 58.62
0.20 0.12
749.20 58.74
595.00 279.00
(113.00) -
486.00 575.00

Loans ¢t Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as
defined under Companies Act, 2013}, either severally or jointly with any other persen, that are:

{a) repayable on demand; or

(k) without specifying any terms or period of repayment,

Type of Borrower

Amount of loan or
advance in the nature
of foan outstanding

Percentage to the total
Leans and Advances in
thye nature

Relalwd parlies

Reliance infrastruciure Limiled

Rs 100 Mn armount of
Inlercoporate deposils
glven

100%

Reliance Aerostructure

Rs 66 Mn amount of
intercoporate deposits
given

100%

Reliance Airport Developers

Rs 70 Mn amount of
Inlercoporate deposits
given

100%

JR Toll Road Pvl LTd

Rs 113 Mn amount of
intercoporale deposils
given

100%

Reliance Velocity

Rs 250 Mn amount of
Inlercoporate deposits
given

100%

Rs. Millions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
Miarch 31, 2023

Note 5 (c) - Other financial assets - gurrent
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
irderest accrued on ICD

Claim receivable from NHA

Securify deposits

Other receivables

Naote 5 {d) - Non Current financial assets
{Unsecured considered good)
Security deposils

Note 6 - Other Current assets
(Unsecured considered good)
Advanue o vendors

Advance to employees

Other receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Dulies and taxes receivable

9.7 2.68
3.03 10.13
1.63 1.48
1.68 2.07
15.249 16.36
013 0.13
0.13 813
0.16 0.38
8.20 0.72
3.64 -
1.66 3.21
1.08 0.56
14,75 4.88
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Note 7 - Share Capital Rs. Miltions
Paniculars Nos of As at As al

Shares March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Note 7 {a} - Authorised Equily Share Capital

At the beginning of the year 10,0000, 000 1,000.00 1,000.00

Add | Increase during the yaar - - -

Al the end of the year 10,00,00,000 1,000.00 1,000.00

Note 7 (b) - Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity

share capitat

At he beginning of the year 4477 000 4477 4477

Add | Increase during the year - - -

Al the end of the year 44,771,000 44.77 44.77

Note 7 {c} - Terms and rights attached to equily shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as Equity Shares having a Par Value of Rs. 10/-, In the evenl
of liquidation of lhe company, the holders of equily shares will be entitled 1o receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribulion of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in propartion to the number of equity

shares held by the shareholders.

Note 7 () - Reconcifiation of nos of Shares

Nos of Shares at the beginning of the year 44 77,000 44,777,000
Add : Nos of Shares issued during the year -
Mos of Shares at the end of lhe year 44,77,000 44,77,000
Note 7 {8} - Shares held by the hokding company
or their subsidiaries/associates
Reliance Infrastructure Limited (Holding Company} & its nominees
Rekance Infrastructure Limited (Holding Company) & its nominees 44,77,000 44,77,000
{Name of Other Company holding Shares)
{Relationship of Company)
Note 7 {f) - Details of Sharehclders holding more than 5% shares
Re#ance Infrastructure Limited
Mos of Shares 44,777,000 44,771,000
% of holding 100% 100%
Note 7g - Details of Shares held by promoters
Fromoter Name MNo. Of Shares | % of Shares
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 44,77 000 100.00%
Total 44,777,000
Note 7i - Details of Shares Pledged, Safekeep and Unpledged by promters
ALEY

Particulars March 31, As at

No of Share 2024 WMarch 31, 2023
Pledged 13,43,180 13,43,100
Safekesp £.,50,570 8,50,570
Unpledged share 22,83,330 22,83,330
Total No of Share 44,77,000 44,577,000
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Rs. Millions

Particulars

As at
Maich 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Note 8 - Sub-ordinated debt (in nature of equity}
At the beginning of the year

Increase / (decrease) during the year

Transfer to unsecured loan

At the end of the year

Note 8(i} - Sub-ordinated debt infused by holding company
Reliance Infrastructure Limited {Holding Company)

Note 8a - Other equity -Reserves and Surplus
Retained Earnings

Note 8a {i) - Retained Earnings

At the beginning of the year
ProfitfLoss}) for the year

direclly in retained earnings
- Remeasuremens of post-employements
chligations (net of tax}

At the end of the year

1,902.69 1,982.69
(796.10) (80.00)
(1,106.59)
1,502.69
\ 1,802.69
(2,218.53) (637.17)
{2,218.53) {637.17)
(637.16) (566.28)
(1,579.38) (66.79)
{1.99) {4.09)
(2,218.53) (637.16)
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Note 09 - Borrowings - Non ctirrent

Rs. Millions
- A5 &t Agal
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sub-ordinated debt
From Related Party ( Refer note) 1,106.59 1.402.69

Total 1,105.59 1.902.64
Note
a) Unsecured Loan Sub-ordinated debt infused by holding company (Reliance Infrastructure Limited)
b The applicatle interest rale on Sub-ordinaled debt is 10.50% p.a.

Hs. Millions

. As at As at
Patticutars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Note 10 - Trade Pavables
Tolat cutstanding due 10 Micro and small enlerprises - -
Totat ouistanding dues of credilors other than micro enlgrprises & small enlerprises
Related 2.24 2.24
Other 15.58 24.37
Totai 17.82 26.61
a) Trade Payabtes agelng schedule
As al MMsl Maah 2024
. Qutstanding for below periods from date of transaction
Particulars
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-1 Years More than 3 Years Taotat
1) MSWME - - - - -
2) Others 0.33 0.13 2.2% 5.79 9.52
3) Risputed Dues - MSME - - - - -
4) Disputed Dues - Others - - - - -
5) Unbilled dues - - - - 8.30
Total Trade Payables 0.32 0.12 2.27 1.54 17.82
As at 3st March 2023
Particulars Outstanding for below periods from date of transaction
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total

1) MSME - - - - -
2) Others .06 4.19 4.58 8.05 16.89
3) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -
4) Disputed Dues - Qlhers - - - - -
5} Unbilled dues - - - - 9.73
Total Trade Payables 0.06 4,19 4.5% 1.54 26.61

b} Dues fo Micro and Smalf Enterprises
Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006" is based on Ihe information

available wilh the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received from them on
requests made by the company. There are no overdue principal amountsfinterest payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the
Balance Sheet date. There are no delays in payment made {o such suppliers during the year or for any earlier years and accordingly there is no
interest paid or outstanding inlerest in this regard in respect of payments made during the year or brought forward from previous years.

Rs. Millions
- A at e al
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Note 11 - Other financial liabilities - current
Interest accrued but not due 2,079.38 -
Employee benefits payable 7.21 3.95
Retention money payable { Refer Foot Note) 58.79 17.75

Total 2,145.39 21.7¢
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Foot Note:
Retention Payables ageing schedule
As at 31st March 2024

OCutstanding for below poricds from date of transaction

Particutars Less ihan 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Tatal
Retention money payable 45,66 10.39 0.38 2.36 58.79
Total 45.66 10.39 0.38 2.26 58,79
As at 31st March 2023
Particutars Cutstanding for below periods from date of transaction
Less lhan  Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years wore than 3 Years Total
Relenlion money payable 14.34 0.78 0.27 2.36 17.%5
Total 14.34 0.78 .27 2.26 17.75
Re. Millions
- AEEE As at
Particulars March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024

Note 12 {a) - Provisions - Current

Current

Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity
- L.eave encashment

{Hhers
- Reswlacing expenses - Refer Note
Total

Note

Movement of Resurfacing provisions is as follows:

Al the beginning of the year

Charged f {credited) to Statement of Profit and Loss

Provision made during the year
Excess provision writlen hack
unwinding of discount

Amounl uliised during the year

Al the end of the year

Resuraclng provisions - signlficant estimates

0.70 0.70
0.02 0.04
43.39 300.16
44,11 300.91
380.18 279.83
101.62 10162
40.70 31.14
(399.10) (112.42)
1239 Anna

As per the service concession arrangement with NHAI, the company is obligated to carry oul resurfacing of he roads under concession. The

company estimales the likely provision required towards resurfacing and accrues the costs on a siraight line basis over the period al the end of the

which resurfacing would be required, in the Statement of Profit and Loss in accordance with Ind AS 37 * Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Conlingeil Assets.

Rs. Millions

Partictdars

AEAT
March 31, 2024

FEL
March 31, 2023

Note 12 (b)- Provisions - Non - Curront

Provision for employee benefits

- Graluity 7.96 509
- Leave encashment 0.10 0.09
Total 8.06 5.8
Rs. Millions
- A5 al Asal
Particulars March 31, 2024 tarch 31, 2023

Note 13 - Other current liabilifies
Dulies and faxes payahle
Total

23.61

0.66

23,61

0.66
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Rs. Millions

For Year ended
March 31, 2024

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Note 14 - Revenue from operations

Operaling income

- Income from {oll collections - Refer Note . 27:2 526.35 466.43
526.35 466.43
Note 15 - Other income
- On fixed deposiis 4.57 -
- Others inlerest on ICD 8.70 2.68
- Others Interest on income {ax refund .09 0.25
Excess provision for exps written back - 20.67
-Miscellaneous income - 0.01
13.36 23.61
Note 16 - Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses
Subcontracting expenses 33.96 27.93
Maintainence of Roads 166.03 161.56
Eleclricity expenses 3.18 477
Site and olher direct expenses 0.05 0.38
203.22 194.64
Note 17 - Employee benefits expenses
Salaries wages and bonus 3140 17.22
Conlibulion to provident funds and other funds 1.83 0.93
Gratuity 0.e8 0.33
Leave encashment 0.13 0.28
Staff welfare expenses 0.39 0.27
34.63 19.03
Note 18 - Finance Costs
Interest on loan - -
Unwinding of discount on provisions 40.70 31.14
Other finance charges ~ -
40.70 31.14
Note 19 - Other expenses
Rent 0.11 0.24
E£CL on Investment 113.00 -
Rales & taxes 0.18 .38
Insurance 7.36 177
Legal and Professional Charges 28.13 9.59
- Audit Fees 0.30 0.24
Travelling and Conveyance 0.61 0.34
Other miscellaneous expenses 3.59 2.54
153.27 2110
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Note 20 - Fair value measurements

Signficance of financial instruments

Classification of financial instruments Rs. Millions
. As at As al
Particulars tarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial assets
At amortised Cost

L.oans 486.00 279.00
Security Deposits 1.76 161
Interest accrued on fixed deposis 9.75 2.68
Cash and Cash equivalenis 149.20 58.74
Claim receivable from NHAI 461 12.20
Totat Hinancial assots 651.32 354,23

Financial labilitics

At amorlised Cost

Fioating Rale Borrowings 1,106.59 -
Debentures . .
Trade Payables 17.82 26.61
Retenlion money payable 58.79 17.75
linterest acerued but not due 2.079.39 -
Employee Benefits Payable 7.21 3.95
Total financial liabilities 3,269.80 48.31%
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Note 21 - Fair value Hierarchy

{a} Fair value hierarchy - Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

Rs, Millions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Financial fiabilities

Level 3

Floating Rate Borrowings
Debentures

Retention money payable
Total financial liabilities

Recognised fair value measurements

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

1,106.59 -
58.79 17.75
1165.38 17.75

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market {for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observabie, the instrument is included in leved 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the
case for borrowings, debentures, Rerention money payable and hedging derivative included in levet 3

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used {o value financial instruments include:
» the use of guoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

+ the fair vatue of forward foreign exchange conlracts and principal swap is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance

sheet date

+ the fair value of the remaining financial instruments s determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

{b} Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

Rs. Millions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
tarch 31, 2023

Financial liabilities

Carrying value of financial liabilities at amortised cost
Floating rate borrowings
Debentures
Retention money payable

Fair value of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Floating rate borrowings
Debentures
Retention money payable
NHAI Premium Payable

58.79 17.75
58.78 17.75
58.79 17.75
58.79 17.75

The carrying value amounts of security deposits, retention money receivable, cash and cash.gequivalents.trade payables, employee

benefits payable approximate their fair value due to their short term nature.
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Nole 22 - Financial risk management

The company activities exposes it to market risk, Hguidity risk and credit risk.
This note explaing the source of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity is manage the risk.

Risk
Credit risk

Market risk — foreign exchange

Market risk — interest rale

Liguidity risk

Tive company’s fisk management is carried out by a project linance leam and central freasury ieam under policies approved by board of

Exposure

arising from
Cash and cash
equivalenls, trade
receivabtes, financial
assels measwed at
amortised cosl.
Recopnized financial

assets and liabililies not

denominaled in indian
rupee (INR)

Long-term borrowings at

variable

Rates

Borrowings and olher
liabilities

Measureament

Aging anatysis Credit
ratings

Cash flow forecasting
Sensiivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis

Rolling cash flow
forecasts

Management

Diversification of bank
deposils, credil limits
and letters of credit

Actively Managed

Actively Managed

Availability of commilled
credit lines and
borrowing facitities

direclars. Company identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risk in close co-operation wilh the groug’s operating units. The Management

of the company  provides writlen principles for overatl risk management, as well as palicies covering specific areas, such as interest rate

risk and credil risk, use of derivative financial instrument and non-derivative financial instrument, and investments of excess liquidiy,

Commodity risk:

The company requires for inplementation {consliuction, operation and mainlenance) of the projects, such as cemenl, bitumen, stee) and

other construclion materials. For which, the company entered into fixed price conlract with Ihe EFC contractor and O8M Contractor so as

o Manage our eXposUEne 10 Droe INCreases mn raw malenals. Hence, Lhe sensilivity analysis is not raguired,

Market risk — interest rate risk

The Bank loans follows floating rates with resels defined under agreements. While interest rate fluctuations carry a risk on financials, lhe

company earn loll income which s Enked 1o WPI thus providing a natural bedge to the interest rate risk.

a} Interest rate risk exposurg

Rs. Millians

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

Az at
Warch 31, 2023

Variable Rate Borrowings 1,406.59 -
Fixed Rale Borrowings -
Totai 1,106.59 -
k) Sensitivity analysis
from borrowings as a result of changes in inlerest rates.
As at As at

Impact on profit/loss after tax

March 31, 2024

Warch 31, 2023

Interest rates {increase) by 100 basis points
Interest rates decrease by 100 basis poinis

{9.34)
9.34




SU Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Liquidity risk - Table

The table below analyses the company's non-derivative financial fiabilities and net-settled
derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. Derivative financial liabilities are
included in the analysis if their contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of
the timing of the cash flows. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows,

As at March 31, 2024 Less than1  More than 1 Total
year year

Non-derivatives

Borrowings 616.89 5,638.73 6,156.62

interest on Borrowings 631.26 1,669.93 2,301.1¢

Trade and other payables 221.83 - 221.83

Other financial liabilities 301.58 - 301.58

Total non-derivatives 1,771.56 7,208.66 8,980.22

As at March 31, 2023 Less than1  More than 1 Total
year year

Non-derivatives

Borrowings 480.80 5,668.56 6,158.36
Interest on Borrowings 695.23 2,301.19 2,896.42
irade and other payables 205.69 - 205.69
Other financial liabilities 115.18 115.15

Total non-derivatives 1,505.87 7,969.75 9,475.62




NK Toll Road Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 23 - Capital risk management

The company objectives when managing capital are to

» safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so thal they can continue fo provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for olher stakeholders, and

= Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

For the purpose of the company capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share
premium, sub-debts and all other equity reserves atiributable 10 the equily holders of the parent. The

primary objeclive of the company capital management is to maximize the shareholder value.

The company manages its capilal structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
comipany may adjust the dividend payment {0 shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue interest
free sub-ordinate debl. The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by
total capital plus net debt. The company policy is to keep optimum gearing ratic. The company includes

within net debt, inlerest bearing loans and borrowings, trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

In order {0 achieve this overall objective, the company capital management, amongst other things, aims to
ensure thal it meets financial covenants altached fo the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define
capital structure requirements. No changes were made in the objeclives, policies or processes for

managing capital for year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capial on the basis of the following gearing rafio;

Net debt including total borrowings {net of cash and cash equivalents)
divided by

Total "equity’ {as shown in the balance sheet),
Hs. Millions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Net debt (a) 1,106.58 -
Equily (b) (2,173.76) 1,310.30
Net debt to equity ratio {a) / (b) {0.51} -
Rs. Millions
As af As at

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Net debt (a) 1,106.58 -
Equity (b) {2,173.7G) 1,310.30
Nebt debt plus Equity (c = a+b) (1,067.17) 1,310.30
Gearing ratio (a)/ ¢ {1.04) -
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NK Tofl Road Limited
Noles to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 25
Liguidity risk - Table

Liguidily risk is the risk thal the Company may not be able 1o mee! its presenl and fulure cash and coltateral obligalions without
incurring unacceplable losses. The Company objective is 1o, at ail thves mainlain optimum levels of liquidity lo meet its cash and
collateral regquirements. The Conipany clesely moenitors ils iiquidity posilion and deploys a robust cash management system. il
maintains adedquate sources of financing including debt from banks at an optimized cost. The liguidily risk is managed on the basis of
expecled malurity dates of the financial liabilities. The average credit period laken to selfle lrade payables is about 30 {o 60 days. The
carrying amounds are assumed o be a reasonable approximalion of Fair Value (2). The following lable analyses financial liabililies by
reraining contraclual maturilies.

The lable below analyses the group's non-derivative financial liabilities and nel-setlied derivative financial liabilities inlo refevant
malurily groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheel date to the contractug! maturily date. Derivative financial
kabilities are included in the analysis il their conlraclual matuiilies are essential for an undersianding of the fiming of lhe cash flows.
Tihe amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.,

Rs. Millions
As at March 31, 2024 less than 1 Maore than 1 Total
year year
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 100 00 1,008.59 1,106,549
Inlerest on Borrowings 11619 28558 401,77
Trade and other payables 17.82 - 17.82
Olher financial liabililies 214539 - 2,145.39
Total non-derivatives 2,.379.40 1,292,497 4,671,065
Rs. Milions
As at March 31, 2023 Lessthag 1 More than 1 Total
year year
HNon-derivatives
Borrowings - . .
Interesl on Borrowings - - .
Trade and ather payables 26.61 - 26.61
Other financial liabilities 21.70 - 21.70

Total non-derivatives 48.31 - 48.31




NK Toll Read Limited
Notes fo Financlal Statemants ag of and for tho year ended March 31, 2024

Note 26 Earning per share

Farlicuiars As at s at
! March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profil/ {Loss) allributable to equily shareholders (Rs. Millions) (A) {1.579.38) (BB.78)
Weighled average number of equify shares for basic and dilwted 44,77 Q00 4477 000
earnings per share {Rs.) {8)
Eamings / (Loss) per share (Basic and diluted) (Rs.) {(A/B) (352.78) {14.92)
Nominal value of equily shares (Rs.) 10.00 10,00
Nate 27 - Contingent Liability
As at As al

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1. Clalms againsi the company nol acknowledged as debis and under Nigaton

Income Tax Claim 17.74 17.74

2.FasTag Penally : -The company has been collecting penally from the users for using FasTag lanes wilhou! valid FasTAG, he same
has been considered as part of income of the company since the company is of the view that the same is hot ayable to NHAI
notwilhstanding the demands [um NIHAL The aggregale amount of penally collecled and appropriated under Income for March 2024
is R5.5.63 Mitlion { for March 2023 is Rs.7.04 Million} and upto March 2024 is Rs 24.27 Million

3.Independent Engineers! NHA have issued various communicalion o the company purportedly towards default in meeting the
maintenance obligation, of the company and consequential penalty on account of the same. The company has contesled the same
and hence no effecl of the same is considered necessary in the financial statements

4.There are numerous interpretalive issues relating lo the Supreme Court {SC) judgement dated February 28th, 2019 on Providem
Fund (PF} on the inclusion of allowances for the purpose of PF contribution as well as its applicability of effective date. The Comgany
has evaluating and lhere is no material impact on its financial stalement. The Company, in respect of the above menfioned Conlingent
Liabililies has assessed thal il i3 only possible but no! probable that outllow of economic resources will be reguired.

5.The indirect tax authorilies during an invesligation in Financial Year 2016 stated thal the Company was not eligible to avall CENVAT
credil as there was no output service liable to tax. The departiment issued an order in Aprif 2016 demanding inlerest on the CENVAT
credit availed {or period October 2010 to March 2012 and penally on account of wilfuk suppression of facts. The Company has
appealed agansl such order before the Tax Appellate Tribunal, The tribunal has sel aside he said adjudication order against which
department has now gone in appeal bafors e Hon'ble High Cowl of Mumbai.

Note 28
The Company is engaged in the business of providing infrastructural facililies as per Section 186 (11) read with Schedule VI of the Act.
Accordingly, Seclion 186 of the Actis not applisable (o the Company.




NK Toll Road Limited
Noles to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 34, 2024

Note 28 - Arbitration Claims by the Company

The Arbilral Tribunal pronounced an Award in favowr of the Company for an amounl of Rs. 689.42 millions (includes interesl of Rs.
363.58 millions till the dale of award) + 12% Inleres! post award Lill the dale of realization. On January 7, 2017 NHAI as per the Award
passed by lhe Arbilral Tribunal paid an amount of Rs. 4.77 millions lowards cost of arbitration and an amount of Rs. 7.21 millions
lowards delay in payment of grant during construction period.

NIHAl challenged he arbilration award passed by tribunal before the single bench of the Hor'ble High Courl of Dethi, The Hon'ble High
Court of Dethi on March 23, 2017 dismissed the plea of NHA! on merits. NHAI fias chailenged the Order passed by the single bench of
the High Court of Delli in the division bench of the Hen'ble High Court of Dethi. Based on an interim Order of lhe division bench of the

Hor'ble High Court of Delhi, NHAI made further payment of Rs.12.40 million as per lhe descending nofe of the Arbitration Award,

NHAI filed appeal under Section 37 challenging the Judgment and Order of the Dethi High Court which was dismissed on 26.07.2023
holding ihat ihe observalion of single judge does not warrants any inlgrference as it is not patenlly flegal. The judgment debtor is
directed 1o deposil the amount under The award along with up lo date interest with the learned Registrar General of the Court wilhin 8
weeks fiom 14.08.2023 (as per Order dated 14.08.2023).

Pursuant (o the directions passed by Hon'ble Defhi High Courl dated 14.08.2022, the NHAI deposited a sum of Rs. 1243 28 million on
30.10.2023 will the Registrar General of DHC computing inlerest only (il 21.08.2023.

The Company filed an application in DHC seeking release of entire Awarded amount deposited with Registry by NHAL On
20.11.2023, NHAI had submilled that they have no objection 1o deposil the amount in escrow account. DHG direcled the regislry to
release the amount in favour of lhe Company . A sum of Rs. 1246.06 Million (interest caloulated upto 21.08.2023) was transferred to
Escrow Account on (1.12.2023.

The Company filed interim application to release the halance amounl Rs 18.97 million calculating interest upto 30.10.2023. On
09.01.2024, DHC directed NHAI to refease balance amount Rs 18.97 million within 3 weeks.

NHAI has released the balance amount Rs 14.01 million on 21.02.2024. So, as of now, almosl enlire amaount fowards arbilration
Awvard with inleres( liff 30.10.2023 is received lo the Company.

Note 30 - Exceptional items

1. During the year, the Company has received Rs 1261.94 Million towards the arbitration award in respect of the order of Arbitrat
Tribunal in favor of the company. The company has analysed the award and has accordingly frealed the same as recovery towards
capilal and revenue depending upon the nalure of the various items in respect of which the award had been received.

The amount of award received nal heing part of the normal operaling activities have been trealed as Exceptional items in the
statement and Profit and Loss, oul of lotal amount received of Re 1261.94 Million towards the arbilration award, Rs 538.71 Million is
related to construction cosl hence the same has been redduced from project cost and Rs.4.58 Million against Claim receivable
towards arbilralion legal fees which is adjusted and remaining of Rs 7 18.63 Million under Statement of Profit and Loss account under
exceptional lems.

2. Similarly, ihe company has accounted for inlerest incorme and expenses in respect of loan received / given o ils parent company
from the dale of the respective lransaclions, which have been nelted and net Interest Exps - Rs 1,381.77 Mn charged and shown
under Excoptional ltems,

3. Net Cxceptional llems as below : - Inleresl Exps - Rs 2,100.39 Mn ang Arbilration Award Income {nel of Capital Receipt) - 718.63
Mn = Net Impacl in Exception tems = Rs 1,381.77 Mn,
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Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended Margh 31, 2024

Note 31 - Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans
a) Defined contribution plan

The following amount recognized as an expense in Slatement of profil and loss on accoun! of provident fund and other funds. There are no
olher obligations other than the coniribulion payable 1o 1he respective authorities.

Rs. Milions
] As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contribution 1o pravident fund and other funds 2.84 .54
Total 2.84 1.54

a} Defined henefit plan
The company has a defined benefit pfan (Gratuity} for its employees. The gratuity plan is governed by the Paymenl of Gratuily Actl, 1972,

Under the Act, employes who has compleled five years of service is enlitied fo specific benefil. The leve! of benefils provided depends on the
member's length of service and salary al retirement age. Every employee who has compleled five years or more of service gels a gratuity on
departure at 15 days salary {las! drawn salary) for each compleled year of service as per the provision of the Fayment of Graluity Act, 1972
with tolal celling on gratuity of Rs.1,000,000/-. The said gratuity plan is funded.

The following lables summarigs Ihe The amounls recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the nel defined benefil obligation
over the year are as follows:

Rs. Millions
As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 0.46 0.21
Interes! cost an benefil obligation 0.42 .12
Expenses Recognised 0.88 0.33
Incomel{iExpenses) Recognised in Other Comprehensive Inceme (OCI)
Actuarial Lossf{Gain) arising an account of demographic assumptions 0.05 0.07
Actearnial LossA{Gain) arising from change in financial assumplions 017 - 038
Actuarial Lossf{Gain) arising on account of experience changes 1.80 4.40
Experience (gaing)iosses
Return on Plan Assets excluding Interes income {0.03) {0.00)
Amount recognized in OCI 1.99 4.09
Major Categories of plan asses as a percentage of total
Insurer Managed Funds 100% 100%

The table befow shows the expected cash fiow profile of the benefils 1o be paid 1o the current membership of the plan based on past

Maturity Analysis of Project Benefit Obligation

Within the nexl 12 months (next annual reporting period) 1.44 1.10
Between 2 and § years 5.24 3.36
Between 6 and 10 years 2.94 219
Beyond 10 years 2.41 1.49
Total expecied payments 12.04 8.14
The average duration of the defined benefit ptan obligation at the end of ihe reporting

- A years 4 years
period

. As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024 Marcl 31, 2023
Starling Period 01-Apr-23 01-Apr-22
Bate of Reporting 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Period of Reporting 12 Months 12 Months

Assiumptions

Expected Return on Plan Assels
Rate of Discounting

Rate of Salary Increase

Rate of Employee Tumover

20.00% p.a. for all 20.00% p.a. for alf
service groups. Service groups.
Maortality Rate During Employment indian Assured Lives  Indian Assured Lives
Morlality {2012-14) Morlality (2012-14)
Urban Ultimate

Morlality Rate After Employment NA. ) NA,
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: . I As al Ag at
Change in the Present Value of Projected Benefit Obligation March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the Period 5.99 2.31
interast cost D44 0.13
Current service cosl 0.46 (.24
(Benefil Paid Direclly by the Employer) - {0.75)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligalions - Due to Change in Demographic Assumplions (.05 0.07
Acluarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due 1o Change in Financial Assumptions 0.17 {0.38)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 1.80 4.40
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Period 8.90 5.89

: i Asg al As at
Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assols March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fair Vadue of Plan Assets at the Beginaing of the Period 0.18 0.18
interes! Income 0.04 0.01
Relurn on Plan Assels, Excluding Interest ncome 0.03 (.00
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period 0.23 0.8

As at As at
Amounl Recognized in the Balance Sheet Macch 34, 2024 March 31, 2023
{Presenl Value of Benefil Obligation at Ihe end of the Period) [GRLY! (5.99}
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of Lhe Period 0.23 6.19
Funded Status (Surplus! (Deficit)) (8.67) {5.79)
Net (Liabitity¥Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet (8.67) (5.79)
Provisions
Currenl {1.10) {1.10)
Non-cureent {7.57) {4.69)
A quanlitative analysis for significant assumpfion is na shown briow:
As at As at

Particulars

March 34, 2024

March 31, 2023

Assumptions -Discount rate

Sensitivity Level

impacl on defined benefit obligation -in % increase
lmpact on defined benafil obligation -in % decrease
Assumptions -Future sajary increases
Sensitivily Levet

Impact on defined benefil obligalion -in % increase
impact on defined benefil obligation -in % decrease

100 bp
-3.47%
3.75%

100 b
3.67%
~3.4G%

100 bp
-2.323%
2.51%

00 bp
2.47%
-2.33%

The table below shows the expected cash flow profite of the benefils to be paid to the currenl membership of the plan based on past

senvice of the employeas as at the valuation date:

Plan Assets Composition

Farticulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Non Quoted
* insurer Managed Funds

* As per Aclurial Valuation Report

023

0.18

0.23

0.19
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Notes to Financial Staterents as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 32 Income tax expense

Rs. Millions

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2022

{8) iIncome tax expense
Current lax
Current lax on profils for the year - tax expense for earlier years)

Total current tax expense

Deferred tax

Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assels 771 48.18
(Decrease)fincrease in deferred lax habilities {F7.11) {25.08)
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) - 2312
Income tax expense - 23.42

income tax expense is attributable to;

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

ProfitLoss) as per Ind AS from operations before income lax expense

Income Tax as per effective Tax Rale of 27.82% (26%)
Expenses not allowed for 1ax purpose

Reversal / {Crealion) of Deferred Tax

income Tax for Earlier Years

Total Tax Expense

{1.579.38) (4387
(439.38) {12.15)
439.38 12.15

- 2312

- 235432

{b) Tax loss on which tax credit not recognised in Financiai Statement

As at March 31, 2824

March 31, 2023

Unused tax oh business losses for which no deferred tax assets has been recognised

{c} Deferred tax balances
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Rs. Millions

As at March 31, 2024 |As at March 31, 2023
Deferred tax liability on account of:
Concession intangible Assets 104.03 181.14
Borrrowings - -
104.03 18114
Deferred tax asset on account of:
Provision for resurfacing expenses 11.28 78.04
Retirement Benefils 229 1.54
Unabsorbed tosses (including depreciation} 129.97 141.06
143.54 220.65
Net deferred tax {l:abitity}/Asset 3%.54 39.481

td) Movement in deforred tax balances:

Particulars Entanglble.ass.?ts - Unused Tax Others items Total
foll collection rights Losses
As at April 01, 2022 {206.20) 200.78 68.05 62.83
Charged/(credited) during the year
to profit or ioss 25.06 {53.72) 11.53 (23.12)
to other comprehensive income
As at March 31, 2023 {181.14) 141.06 79.58 39.51
As af April 01, 2023 {181.14) 141.06 70.58 39.50
Charged/(credited) during the quarter
to profit or loss i {11.09) {66.01) 0.01
ta other comprehensive income
As at March 31, 2024 {104.03) 124,97 13.57 39.51




NK Toll Road Limited

Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year endod March 34, 2024

Note 33 - Related Party Transactions

As per Ind AS-24 " Related Parly Disclosure® the Company's related parties and lrasnsactions with them in the

ordinary course of business are disclosed below :

Holding Company
Reliance infrasfruclure Limited

Feflow Subsidiary Company

JR Tolt Road Privale Limiled
Reliance Aerosiructure Limited
Reliance Airport Developer Limited
Reliance Velocily Limited

Key Management Personnet

Madan Pendse - Direclor

Deepak Bisht - Director - Appointed w.e.f 23rd June 2023
Mahesh Galkwad - Director

Sandeep Arvind Joshi - Resigned w.e.f 23rd June 2023

Details of transactions and closing balance

Rs. Millions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As al
March 31, 2023

Transactions during the year: -

Inter-corporate deposit

Reliance Airporl Developer Limited
Reliance Velocity Limited

JR Toll Road Private Limited
Reliance Agrosiruclure Limited
Interest Income

Reliance Aerostruclure Limited
Reliance Airporl Developer Limited
Reliance Velocity Limited

Interest Expenditure

Reliance infrastructure Limiled
Write Of

JR Toll Road Private Limited

Sub-debts {in nature of squity}
Reliance Infrastructure Limited - Repayment

Balances at the year end: -

Inter-corporate deposit

Refiance Infrasinichure { imited

JR Tolt Road Private Limited
Reliance Aerostruciure Limited
Reliance Airpuii Devaloper Limited
Relignce Velocity Limited

inlerest acorand on G0
Reliance Aerostruciure Limited
Reliance Airport Developer Limited
Refiance Velocity Limited

Trade Payable
Reliance Infrastructure Limitad

Interest Payable

Reliance Infrastruclure Limiled
Sub-debts {in nature of equity)
Rekance Infraslructure Limited

Other Receivable
JR Toll Road Private Limiled

Equity share capital {excluding premium)
Olhers (specily)

70.00
250.00

£5.95
0.81
0.30
2,100.39

113.00

7496.10

100.00
£6.00
70.00

250.00

8.66

.82
0.27

2.24

2,078.39

1,106.59

3.64

4477

(B} Key Management Personnet (KMP) and details of transactions with XMP

During the year no payment was made to Key Management Personne! { KMP}.

113.00
GG.00

0.77

£0.00

100.00
113.00
Ga.0n

2.41

2.24

1.902.69

4477
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Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 34 : Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

Rs. Milliohs
As at As at
Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current
Financial asseis
First charge
Cash and cash eguivalents 53 149.20 58.74
Gther Financial Assets 5b 15.89 16.36
Non-tinancial assets
First charge
Other Current Assets 7 14.75 4.88
Total current assets pledged as security 178.94 79.98
Non-Current
First charge
‘niangible Asset 4 420.93 1,265.14
Other Financial Assets 5d 0.13 0.13
Total non-current assets pledged as security 421.06 1,265.27
Total assets pledged as security 601.00 1,345.25
Note 35 ; Disclosure pursuant to para 44 A to 44 E of Ind AS 7 -Cash flow Statements
Rs. Millions
For Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 314, 2024

March 31, 2023

Long term Borrowings

Opening Bafance

- Transfer from Other Equity #REF! -
Repaid During the year - -
Closing Balance #REF] -
interest Expenses
Opening Balance - -
Interest Charge as per Statement Profit & Loss ¢
Intangible assets under development 40,70 31.14
Changes in Fair Value
- Impact of Effective Rate of interest - -

- Unwinding of Discount on provisions {40.70) {(31.14)

- Other 2.079.29

inderest paid to Lenders - -

Closing Balance 2,079.39 -

Note 36 - Auditors Remuneration Rs. Millions
For Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Audit Feas 0.24 0.24
Cenrtification Fees 0.06 -
Total 0.30 0.24
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Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 37 - Ratios

Rs, Millions

Particulars Mar-24 Mar-23 % Change Reason
1} Current ratio {alfh) 0.30 1.03 (70.91)| Ratio decrease due to
Current Assefs (a) 665.84 358.97 Increase in current Hability
Current Liability (b) 2,230.93 349.88 during the current year

compare with last year
2} Debt Equity ratio {c/d) {0.51) - NA
Debt (c) 1,106.58 -
Equity {d} (2,173.78) 1,310.30
3) Debt Service Coverage ratio { eff} - “ #DIVIO!
EBITDA () 148 54 255 27
interest on Term Loan - -
Principal Repayment - -
Total interest & Principal Repayment {f} - -
4) Return an Eguity ratio (g/h) 3.66 (0.05) (7.689.58)|Increase in locses due to
Profit after Tax (g} {1,579.38) {66.79) exceptional items incurred in
AverageShareholder's Equity (h) (431.73} 1,385.75 current year as compare to last

year.
§) Trade Payable Turnover ratio (ifj) 16.05 519 208.12|Ratio increase mainly due to
Net Credit Purchases (i) 356.49 215.74 decrease in average trade
Average Trade Payable{j) 22.22 41.56 payable compare 1o last year
6) Net Capital Turnover ratio (kin) {0.34) £1.23 {100.66)| Ratio decrease mainly due to
Net Sales (kb 526.35 466.43 increase in current laibilities
Current Assets (l) 665.94 358.97 compare to last year.
Curreni Liabilities {m) 2,230.93 349.88
Working Capital (n} {l-m} {1,564.99) 9.10
7} Net Profit ratio {3.00} {0.14) 199532 Due to increase in looses as
Profit after Tax (m) {1,579.38) (66.79) compare to last year, resulting
Net Sales {n} 526.35 466.43 reduction in ratio.
8) Return on Capital Employed {ofr) 0.15 (0.01) {1,637 36)| Ratio improve due ton increase
EBITA (o) {156.91) 12.53 in  toll  revenue resulting
Nat Worth {p) {2,173.76) 1,310.30 operation profit during the year
Total Debt (q) 1,106.59 -
Total Capital Employed ('r) {p+q} {1,067.17) 1,310.30
3} Return on Investment (sft) NA NA
10} invenfory Turnover Ratio NA NA
11) Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio NA NA




NK Tell Read Limited
Notes 1o Financial Slatements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 38 - Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged in "Road Infrastructure Projects” which in the context of Ind AS 108 "Operating
Segment” is considered as the only segment. The Company's aclivilies are restricled within india and hence, no
separale geographical segment disclosure is considerad necessary.

Note 39 - Events after reporting period
There are no subsequent event after the reporting year which required adjustments to the Financial Statements.

Note 40 —Foreign currency Exposure
The Company does not have any exposure in the foreign currency.

Note 41 Other Statutory Information

iy The company has no fransactions with struck off companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or
section 560 of Companies Act, 1958

it} The Company have noi advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s} or entity(ies), including
foreign enlilies {Intermediaries} with the understanding that the intermediary shail:

{a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or

{b) Provide any guarantee, security or the iike 1o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

iii} The Company have not received any fund from any person(s} or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Funding
Parly} with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

{a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enlilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Parly (Ullimate Beneficiaries} or

{b} Provide any guarantee, security or the like on hehalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

iv) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the baoks of accounts that has
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the {ax assessments under the Income-iax Act, 1961,

Note 42 Details of Crypfo currency or virtual currency
Company has not traded or invesied in Cryplo curtency or Virtual Currency during the financial year
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